
%^l 

LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Financial Statements and Supplemental Schedules 

December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(With Independent Auditors' Report Thereon) 

Under provisions of state law this report is a public 
document A copy of the report has been submitted to 
the entity and other appropi late public officials The 
report is available for public inspection at the Baton 
Rouge office of the Legislative Auditor and where 
appropnate. at the office of the pansh clerk of court 

Release Date AUG 2 2 2012 

i j n i ^ l Postlethwaite 
S ^ U & Netterville 

A Proleisional Accountmg Corporolion 

www pncpa com 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
(A Proprietary Component Unit of tlie City of New Orleans) 

Table of Contents 

Page 

Independent Auditors' Report 1 - 2 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 3 - 1 6 

Financial Statements 

Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 17-18 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets for the years ended 

December31,201I and 2010 19 

Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 20 - 21 

Notes to Financial Statements 22 - 41 

Supplemental Schedules: 
Schedule 1 - Supplemental Schedule of Investments for the year ended December 31,2011 42-43 

Schedule 2 - Supplemental Schedule of Operatmg Revenues and Expenses by Area of Activity 
for the year ended December 31,2011 44 

Schedule 3 - Supplemental Schedule of Histoncal Debt Service Coverage Ratio as Required 
Under the General Revenue Bond Trust Indenture dated February 1,2010 for the year ended 
December 31,2011 45 



t i S l i l i Postlethwaite 
^ « " ^ " & Netterville 

A Profcuiicncl Accounting Corporotion 
Asiocioisd OFfices m Pnnapal Ctt:es ol >K« United Sta-cs 

www pncpa com 

Independent Auditors* Report 

New Orleans Aviation Board and the 
City Council ofthe City of New Orleans, Louisiana 

We have audited the accompanying fmancial statements ofthe Louis Armstrong New Orleans International 
Airport (the Airport), a proprietary component unit ofthe City of New Orleans, as of December 31, 2011 
and 2010 for the years then ended, as listed in the foregoing table of contents These financial statements 
are the responsibihty of the Airport's management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audits 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards apphcable to financial audits contained m Govemment Auditmg StandardSy 
issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States Those standards reqmre that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement We were not engaged to perfonn an audit of the Airport's mtemal control over financial 
reporting. Our audit included consideration of mtemal control over financial reportmg as a basis for 
designmg audit procedures that are appropnate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressmg 
an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe Airport's mtemal control over financial reporting Accordingly, we 
express no such opmion An audit includes examinmg, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessmg the accountmg principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluatmg the overall fmancial statement presentation We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion 

In our opmion, the fmancial statements referred to above present fau'ly, m all material respects, the 
financial position of the Louis Armstrong New Orleans International Airport as of December 31,2011 and 
2010, and the changes m its financial position and its cash fiows for the years then ended, in conformity 
with U S generally accepted accountmg principles. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 28, 2012, 
on our consideration of the Airport's mtemal control over financial reportmg and our tests of its 
compliance with certam provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to descnbe the scope of our testmg of mtemal control over fmancial reportmg 
and compliance and the results of that testmg and not to provide an opinion on the intemal control over 
financial reporting or on comphance That report is an integral part of an audit performed m accordance 
with Government Auditing Staruiards and should be considered m assessmg the results of our audit 

Accounting principles generally accepted m the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 16 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements 
Such informaUon, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Govemmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placmg the 
basic financial statements m an appropriate operation, economic, or histoncal context We have applied 
certam luruted procedures to the reqmred supplementary information m accordance with auditmg standards 
generally accepted m the United States of America, which consisted of mquines of management about the 
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methods of preparing the mformation and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquines, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit ofthe basic fmancial statements However, we do not express an opmion or provide any assurance 
on the mformation because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of formmg opmions on the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole Supplemental schedules listed in the foregoing table of contents are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements The supplemental 
schedules are the responsibility of management and were denved from and relate directly to the underlying 
accountmg and other records used to prepare the fmancial statements The supplemental schedules 1 and 2 
have been subjected to the auditmg procedures applied m the audits of the basic financial statements and 
certam additional procedures, includmg companng and reconciling such mformation directly to the 
underlymg accounting and other records used to prepare the fmancial statements or to the fmancial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of Amenca In our opinion, supplemental schedules 1 and 2 are fairly stated 
in all material respects, m relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole Schedule 3 has not 
been subjected to the auditmg procedures applied m the audit of the basic fmancial statements and, 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it 

Metaine, Louisiana 
June 28,2012 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

This narrative discussion and analysis is mtended to serve as an introduction to the Louis Armstrong New 
Orleans Intemational Airport's basic financial statements for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2011 and 
2010, with selected comparative mformation for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 The information 
presented here should be read m conjunction with the financial statements, footnotes, and supplementary 
information in this report 

Overview ofthe Financial Statements 

The Louis Armstrong New Orleans Intemational Airport (the Airport) is stmctured as an enterpnse fimd. The 
financial statements are prepared on the accmal basis of accountmg Therefore, revenues are recognized when 
eamed and expenses are recognized when incurred Capital assets are capitalized and depreciated, except for 
land, over their useful lives. See the notes to the financial statements for a summary ofthe Airport's significant 
accountmg policies 

Following this Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) are the basic financial statements and 
supplemental schedules ofthe Airport. This information taken collectively is designed to provide readers with an 
understandmg ofthe Airport's finances 

The balance sheets present information on all ofthe Airport's assets and liabilities, with the difference between 
the two reported as net assets Over time, mcreases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of 
the Auport's financial position 

The statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets present information showing how the Auport's 
net assets changed dunng the fiscal year. All changes m net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless ofthe timing of related cash flows Thus, revenues and expenses are 
reported in these statements for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal penods 

The principal operating revenues of the Auport are from sources such as airiines, concessions, rental cars, and 
parlung Investment income, passenger facility charges, customer facility charges, federal grants, and otlier 
revenues not related to the operations ofthe Airport are nonoperating revenues Operating expenses include the 
cost of airport and related facihties maintenance, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets 
Interest expense and financing costs are nonoperating expenses. 

The statements of cash flows relate to the flows of cash and cash equivalents Consequently, only transactions 
that affect the Airport's cash accounts are recorded m these statements A reconciliation is a part of these 
statements to assist m the understanding of the difference between cash flows from operating activities and 
operating loss 

Financial Highlights 

Due to a stmggling economy, enplanements in 2009 decreased 2.1 percent compared to 2008. However, the 
Airport fared better than the national trend In 2010, total enplanements mcreased by 5 2% as compared to 2009 
levels In 2011, total enplanements increased by 4 2% as compared to 2010 levels 

(Continued) 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

In November 2005, the Board approved a financial plan which was intended to provide a roadmap for how the 
Airport would manage its financial operations dunng the recovery from the unpact of Humcane Katrina It 
included cash flow projections based on certam growth scenanos related to expenses, debt obligations, passenger 
growth projections, and nonau-lme revenues The plan discussed meetmg its operating needs by utilizing 
available cash balances, federal bonowmgs and grants, possible debt restmctunng, and a working capital credit 
facility The Board received over SIO million from the FEMA Community Disaster Loan Program. On August 
20,2010, the Airport submitted to FEMA an application for loan cancellation, documenting the requuements for 
cancellation ofthe FEMA CDL Loan. On November 5, 2010, the Airport received authority from FEMA to 
forgive all the FEMA CDL Loans in the amount of $10,882,641, plus accmed interest of $1,122,297 The Airport 
recorded a gam on extmguishment of debt m the amount of $12,004,938 m the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes m Net Assets for the year ended December 31, 2010 In addition, the Board received approval for 
participation in the Gulf Tax Credit Bonds Program (Go Zone Tax Credit Bonds) sponsored by the State of 
Louisiana in an amount not exceeding $36,000,000 The Auport was approved for $35,371,990 for an interest 
free penod of 60 months By July 2008, the Airport had drawn the full amount authorized, using the funds to pay 
debt service on the Bonds and related mterest rate swap payments 

The Auport negotiated a new Commercial Au l̂me Lease effective January 1, 2009 with the Airlme 
Transportation Companies. The new Airline - Airport Use and Lease Agreement (the "2010 Airline Lease 
Agreement") has an overall residual airline rate-setting methodology and a five-year temi, which expu-es on 
December 31, 2013. Other key provisions to the Agreement include, a single terminal budding rental rate, an 
annual deposit requirement to the General Purposes Fund, and airlme approved capital projects that the NOAB 
may undertake at any tune as demand warrants To date, ten airlines, representing the vast majority of aviation 
activity at the Airport, have executed the Agreement. 

Financial Position 

Total assets increased by $12,478,736 (2%) this year due primarily to an increase in capital assets as a result of 
completion of ARFF Station and the Expansion of Concourse D Total current liabilities have decreased by 
S306,669 primarily resultmg from a decrease in bonds payable 

The largest portion ofthe Airport's net assets, $228,829,564 (62%) at 2011 and $212,834,706 (60%) at 2010, 
represents its investment in capital assets (e.g, land, buildings, machinery, and eqmpment), less any related 
outstandmg debt used to acquire those assets. The Airport uses these assets to provide services to its passengers. 
Visitors, and tenants ofthe airport, consequently, these assets are not available for future spending Although the 
Airport's investment m its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources 
needed to repay this debt must be provided from operations, smce the capital assets themselves cannot be used to 
hquidate these liabilities 

An additional portion ofthe Airport's net assets, $90,813,267 (25%) at 2011 and $98,492,842 (28%) at 2010, 
represents resources that are subject to restrictions from contributors, bond resolutions, and state and federal 
regulations on how they may be used The remaining balance of unrestncted net assets, $49,085,819 (13%) at 
2011 and $44,615,697 (13%) at 2010, may be used to meet the Airport's ongoing obligations. 

(Continued) 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

At the end ofthe current and previous fiscal year, the Airport reported positive balances in all three categones of 
net assets 

Summary of Net Assets (in thousands) 

Assets; 
Current and other assets 
Net capital assets 

2011 2010 2009 

Total assets 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets-
Invested in capital assets, net of debt 
Restricted 
Unrestncted 

Total net assets 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ _ 

294,252 

488,101 

782,353 

59,768 
353,856 

413,624 

228,830 

90,813 

49,086 

368,729 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

339,978 

429,897 

769,875 

50,013 

363,919 

413,932 

212,835 

98,493 

44,615 

355,943 

$ 

$ 

S 

$ _ 

$ 

$ _ 

296,126 

395,738 

691,864 

30,757 

330,797 

361,554 

192.828 

102,166 

35,316 

330,310 

Airlines Rates and Charges 

$ 97 12 
164 
169 

15,966 00 
7 87 

$ 11416 
2.08 
188 

17,695 00 
9 15 

As previously discussed, a new Airline - Airport Use and Lease Agreement has been negotiated and became 
effective January 1, 2009 The rates effective January 1,2011 and 2010 are as follows 

2011 2010 
Terminal building rental rates (per sq fl) 
Landing fee rate (per 1,000 lbs) 
Apron use fee rate (per sq ft) 
Loadmg bridge use fee (per bndge) 
Enplaned passenger fee rate (per person) 

Due to the terms ofthe agreement, these rates are subject to settlement The Airport shall use its best efforts such 
that withm the later of (i) one hundred twenty (120) days following the close of each fiscal year or (ii) withm 
sixty (60) days of receipt of audited financial statements, rates for rentals, fees, and charges for the preceding 
fiscal year shall be recalculated using available financial data and the methods set forth in Exhibit F of the 
agreement Under the settlements for 2011 and 2010, the Airport's final rate stmcture varied from the rates in 
effect durmg the year 

5 (Continued) 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

Revenues 

The followmg chart shows major sources and the percentage of operatmg revenues for the year ended 
December 31,2011 

Operating Revenue 

OtMtRRnab 
11 M 

OdMrAimelOFsM 
0 1« AMiw Tenmnd Rent 

37 9% 

Operating Revenues by Major Source (in thousands) 

Passenger and cargo airlines 
Airline landing fee payments 
Airline terminal rental payments 
Ground rents 
Other rentals and fees 

Total passenger and 
cargo airlines 

Non airline rentals 
Concessions-terminal 
Concessions-car rentals 
Public parking 
Other rentals and fees 

Total nonairiine rentals 

Total operatmg revenues 

2011 2010 2009 

7,883 $ 
22,197 

50 
2,427 

32,557 

4,915 
8,584 
8,099 
4,531 

26,129 

58,686 $ 

9,896 $ 
27,613 

50 
2,509 

40,068 

4,697 
9,357 
5,068 
4,592 

23,714 

63,782 $ 

10,744 
28,784 

50 
2,699 

42,277 

3,894 
8,497 
5,294 
4,411 

22,096 

64373 

(Contmued) 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orieans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

2011 vs, 2010 

The 2009 AiHine Lease Agreement remains in effect for 2011 Total air carrier revenue for 2011 decreased by 
$7,511,424 (19%) over 2010 due to reduced revenues resuhmg from a decrease in rates. The landmg fees 
decreased by $2,013,720 (20%) Airline terminal rentals decreased by $5,416,337 (20%) Nonairiine revenue 
mcreased by $2,415,660 (10%), due primanly to an increase in parkmg revenues 

2010 vs. 2009 

Total air earner revenue for 2010 decreased by $2,208,581 (5%) over 2009 due to reduced revenues resulting 
from a decrease in rates. The landing fees decreased by $847,583 (8%) Au'lme terminal rentals decreased by 
$1,170,965 (4%). Nonairiine revenue increased by $1,617,954 (7%), due primanly to an mcrease in rental car 
revenues and concession revenues tliat were partly offset by a decrease m parkmg revenue. 

Cost per enplaned passenger is a measure used by the airlme industry to refiect the costs an airiine pays to 
operate at an airport based upon the number of enplaned passengers for that airport The cost per enplaned 
passenger decreased from $10 45 m 2009 to $9 50 m 2010 and decreased to $7 36 in 2011 

2011 2010 2009 

Cost per enplaned passenger 
Au-line revenues (in thousands) 
Enplaned passengers (m thousands) 
Cost per enplaned passenger 

31,487 
4,281 

7.36 

$ 

$ 

38,987 
4,102 
9.50 

$ 

$ 

40,812 
3.906 
1045 

Expenses 

The following chart shows major expense categones and the percentage of operating expenses for the year ended 
December 31, 2011 

Operating Expenses (Excluding Depreciation) 

Canc/Unreimb Proj 
4 0% 

Administration Area 
56 0% 

(Continued) 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

Operating Expenses before Depreciation (in thousands) 

2011 2010 2009 

Direct (airfield, termmal building and area, 
hangars, leased sites, heliport) 

Administration area 
Cancelled/unreimbursed projects 

16,109 
22,767 

1,681 

$ 16,972 
24,305 

5,562 

$ 17,427 
27,772 

1,037 

$ 40,557 $ 46,839 $ 46,236 

2011 vs. 2010 

The operating expenses before depreciation and amortization decreased by $6,280,953 (13%) over the prior year, 
due pnmanly to a reduction in cancelled/unreimbursed projects m the amount of $3,881,025 (70%) This 
decrease was also due to a reduction in legal costs in the amount of $405,466 (34%), secunty costs of $819,535 
(34%), and utilities of $731,067 (20%) 

2010 vs, 2009 

The operating expenses before depreciation and amortization increased by $602,570 (1%) over the prior year, 
due pnmanly to recognizing an expense for cancelled/unreimbursed projects in the amount of%5,S62,261 This 
mcrease was offset by decreases in a variety of other expense categones 

Nonoperating Revenues, Net 

2011 vs, 2010 

Nonoperating revenues, net, consists primarily of passenger facility charge (PFC) revenue, customer facility 
charge (CFC) revenue, investment mcome, capital contributions, gain on extinguishment of debt, and interest 
expense PFC revenue mcreased 3% from $16,912,099 in 2010 to $17,389,251 in 2011, due primanly to an 
increase in passenger activity CFC revenue decreased 4% from $11,975,343 in 2010 to $11,456,403 
Investment mcome decreased 228% from $106,849 m 2010 to ($136,341) in 2011 due to unfavorable mterest 
rates and losses on investments sold. Capital contributions mcreased 14% from $10,736,088 in 2010 to 
$12,291,012 in 2011 due pnmarily to an mcrease in grant revenue received from the federal govemment 

2010 vs. 2009 

Nonoperatmg revenues, net, consists pnmanly of passenger facility charge (PFC) revenue, customer facility 
charge (CFC) revenue, mvestment income, capital contnbutions, gain on extinguishment of debt, and interest 
expense PFC revenue increased 6% from $15,957,102 in 2009 to $16,912,099 in 2010, due pnmanly to an 
increase in passenger activity CFC revenue increased 25% from $9,565,529 m 2009 to $11,975,343 in 2010 
Investment mcome decreased 55% from $239,496 m 2009 to $106,849 m 2010 due to unfavorable mterest rates 
Capital contnbutions increased 74% from $6,173,801 m 2009 to $10,736,088 in 2010 due pnmanly to an 
mcrease in grant revenue received from the federal govemment 

(Continued) 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

A gain on extinguishment of debt was recognized m 2010 due to the FEMA Community Disaster Loan in the 
amount of $10,882,641, plus interest m the amount of $1,122,297 being forgiven by the federal govemment 
Interest expense remained substantially the same as the prior year. 

Total Revenues and Expenses (in thousands) 

The following table reflects the total revenues and expenses for the Airport (in thousands) 

2011 2010 2009 

Total operatmg revenues 
Total nonoperatmg revenues 

Total revenues 

Total operatmg expenses 
Total nonoperating expenses 

Total expenses 

Summary of Changes in Net Assets (in thousands) 

Summary of changes in net assets 
Operating revenues 
Operating expenses 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

58,686 
29,100 

87,786 

73,004 
14,288 

87,292 

$ 

: ^ = 
$ 

. 5 = 

63,782 
40,968 

104,750 

76,438 
13,415 

89,853 

$ 

= ^ = 
$ 

^ $ 

64,373 
25,762 

90,135 

75,002 
13,797 

88,799 

2011 2010 2009 

Operating income before 

depreciation and amortization 

Depreciation and amortization 

Operating loss 

Nonoperating revenues, net 

Income before capital 

contnbutions and transfers 

Capital contributions 

Change in net assets 

; 58,686 $ 
40,557 

18.129 

32,447 

(14,318) 

14,812 

494 

12,291 

; 12,785 $ 

63,782 $ 
46,839 

16,943 

29,599 

(12.656) 

27,553 

14,897 

10,736 

25,633 $ 

64,373 
46,236 

18,137 

28,767 

(10,630) 

11,966 

1,336 

6,174 

7,510 

Operating income before depreciation and amortization increased $1,185,189 (7%) over the pnor fiscal year 
Depreciation and amortization expense mcreased $2,847,326 (10%). Capital contnbutions increased by 
$1,554,924 (14%) due primarily to an mcrease in the capital contributions received from the federal govemment 

9 (Continued) 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orieans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

Capital contnbutions are composed of federal grants, which are received to fund security improvements, the 
airport layout plan, and the rehabilitation ofthe terminal apron at the Airport 

Capital Assets 

The Airport's mvestment m capital assets can be noted in the following table The total increase for this fiscal 
year was 10% before accumulated depreciation and amortization. Major capital asset events occurring this fiscal 
year include the following: 

• Land improvements/other buildmgs increased primarily due to the completion of the Aircraft Rescue 
and Firefighting Facility at a cost of approximately $14 2 million 

• Terminal buildings and fumishmgs mcreased pnmarily due to the completion ofthe Concourse D 
Expansion for approximately $29 million 

• Constmction in progress mcreased primarily due to progress on the following projects 

Project 

Consolidated Rent A Car Facility 

Termmal Apron Rehab 

Baggage Claim Improvements 

Airfield Lighting Vault 

Upper-Lower Roadway Improvements 

Penmeter Road 

Termmal Intenor Improvements 

USAGE Levee Coordmation 

Utility Building 

Approximate cost 
during FY 2011 (not 
including capitalized 

mterest) 

S35 3 million 

$7 8 million 

$5 6 million 

$5 0 million 

$3 7 nullion 

$3 5 million 

$2 3 million 

$1 3 million 

$1 2 million 

These increases were offset by the completion of various projects More detailed information on capital assets 
can be found in note 4 ofthe accompanymg financial statements. 

10 (Continued) 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

Net Capital Assets (in thousands) 

2011 2010 2009 
Land $ 
Air nghts 
Land improvements 
Buildmgs and fumishmgs 
Equipment 
Computers 
Utilities 
Heliport 
Constmction in progress 

Total capital assets 

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Net capital assets $ 

Debt Activity 

At the end ofthe current fiscal year, the Auport had total debt outstandmg of $367,256,434 The Airport's debt 
represents bonds secured solely by operating revenue and bonds payable from PFC and CFC revenue 

The Airport is currently appealing the repayment schedule for the Go Zone loan and did not remit the required 
interest payment of $820,630 due January 15,2012. 

85,309 $ 
22,283 

341,920 
373,918 
6,496 
713 

7,786 
3,074 

129,621 

971,120 

483,019 

488,101 $ 

85,432 $ 
22,170 

338,034 
331,640 
6,590 
621 

7,786 
3,070 
86,273 

881,616 

451,719 

429,897 $ 

86,787 
20,188 

325,059 
300,059 

5,905 
. 

7,786 
3,070 

69,807 

818,661 

422,923 

395,738 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

Outstanding Debt (in thousands) 

Bonds payable* 
Revenue Refunding Bonds 2007 (PFC) 
Revenue Refunding Bonds 2009A-C 
Go Zone CFC Revenue Bonds 2009A 
GO Zone PFC Revenue Bonds 201OA-B 

Unamortized bond discount 
Unamortized loss on advanced refunding 
Unamortized bond prenuum 

Loans payable: 
FEMA 
Go Zone Tax Credit Bonds 

Interest payable. 
FEMA 
GO Zone 

$ 

2011 

820 

367,256 $ 

2010 

374,369 $ 

2009 

81,255 $ 
128,355 
96,515 
53,640 
(3.483) 

(25,909) 

691 

. 

35,372 

83,890 $ 
136,170 
96,515 
53,640 
(3,646) 

(28,290) 

718 

, 

35,372 

86,415 
144,355 
96,515 

-

(3,228) 
(30,672) 

745 

10,883 
35,372 

1,122 

341,507 

More detailed information on long-term debt can be found in note 5 ofthe accompanying financial statements 

Debt Service Coverage 

Airport revenue bond covenants requue that net revenues together with the sum on deposit m the rollover 
coverage account on the last day ofthe immediately preceding fiscal year will at least equal 125% ofthe bond 
debt service requirement with respect to the bonds for such fiscal year The bond resolution for the Revenue 
Refunding Bonds Senes 2007A, 2007B-1, and 2007B-2, PFC Projects had a remaining ratio requirement of 
105% or greater obtained by dividing the available amount by the cumulative debt amount Coverage ratios for 
the past three years are shown in the following table 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December3I,20II and 2010 
(Unaudited) 

On November 6, 2009, the Board approved the Rollover Coverage for fiscal years 2010-2011 in the amounts of 
$3,719,573 and $3,720,173, respectively. The funds are transferred monthly, in ratable portions ofthe total, to 
the NOAB Rollover Coverage Account held by the City of New Orleans, and then transferred to the Airport 
Operatmg Account, held by tfie City of New Orleans m January 2012 The Auport's calculation ofthe historical 
debt service coverage ratio, as presented m Supplemental Schedule 3 to the financial statements is 156% for the 
year ended December 31, 2011 and 150% for the year ended December 31, 2010 The Airport is current on all 
debt service payments as required by the bonds, and there has been no documented correspondence from the 
bond insurers or bond holders regardmg noncompliance with the debt service coverage covenant 

2011 2010 2009 

Refunding Bonds and Revenue Bonds 
Revenue Refiinding Bonds 

156% 
175% 

150% 
198% 

163% 
225% 

Airport Activities and Highlights 

Passenger totals for 2011 mcreased by 343,585 (4%) over 2010 due to an increase in air carrier operations and 
passenger activity Aircraft operations mcreased fix)m 89,003 operations in 2010 to 92,712 in 2011 (4%) 
Aircraft landed weights increased from 5,501,940 in 2010 to 5,613,633 m 2011 (2%) As of December 2011, the 
Airport had 123 daily departures to 37 cities with 15,463 average daily seats. As of December 2010, the Airport 
had 131 daily departures to 37 cities with 15,084 average daily seats 

The Auport is contmumg a program to rehabilitate aging infrastmcture to meet current demands. Work is 
continuing on the Consolidated Rent A Car Facility, the Terminal Apron Rehabilitation, and Terminal 
Improvements 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

Total Passengers by Month 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

Selected statistical mformation about total passengers, aircraft landed weight, and air carrier operations for the 
past three years are presented in the table below. 

Fiscal year 
2009 
2010 
2011 

Total 
passengers 

7,787,373 
8,203,305 
8,546,890 

Landed weight 
(1,000 pound 

units) 
5,174,944 
5,501,940 
5,613,633 

Air carrier 
operations 

86,857 
89,003 
92,712 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview ofthe Airport's finances Questions concerning 
any of the information should be addressed to the Deputy Director of Finance and Administration, Louis 
Armstrong New Orleans International Auport, Post Office Box 20007, New Orleans, Louisiana 70141 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Balance Sheets 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

Assets 

Current assets 
Unrestncted assets 

Cash (note 2) 
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts 

of $2,050,887 m 2011, $1,152,543 m 2010 
Investments (note 2) 
Prepaid expenses and deposits 

Total unrcstncted assets 

Restricted assets (notes 2, 3, and 5) 
Cash 
Investments 
Passenger facihty charges receivable 
Customer facility charges receivable 
Capital grant receivable 

Total restncted assets 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets 
Long-term mvestments (note 2) 

Investments, restricted 

Total long-term mvestments 

Capital assets (note 4) 
Capital assets not being depreciated 
Capital assets bemg depreciated 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets, net 

Prepaid msurance on revenue bonds, less accumulated 
amorUzation of $835,686 m 2011, $573,406 m 2010 

Deferred cost of bond issuance, less accumulated amortization 
of $816,032 in 2011, $510,752 ui 2010 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

2011 2010 

2,081,790 $ 2,851,944 

5,766,876 
93,304,940 

1,294.732 

102,448,338 

117.681 
37,731,829 
2,048,883 

802,565 
1,897,197 

42,598,155 

145,046,493 

139,346,261 

139,346,261 

237,213,216 
733,907,471 

(483,019,291) 

488,101,396 

3,995,815 

5,863,404 

637,306.876 

782,353,369 $ 

6,612,186 
84,156,164 

1,888,854 

95,509,148 

601,414 
30,486,463 

1,655,612 
856,511 
891,133 

34,491,133 

130,000,281 

199,550,645 

199,550,645 

193,875,484 
687,740,714 

(451,719,271) 

429,896,927 

4,258.096 

6,168,684 

639,874,352 

769,874,633 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Umt ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Balance Sheets 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current liabilities 
Payable firom unrestncted assets. 

Accounts payable 
Due to City of New Orleans 
Accrued salanes and other compensation 
Capital projects payable 

Total unrestncted current liabilities 

Payable from restncted assets 
Accounts payable 
Accrued bond mterest payable 
Bonds payable, current portion (note 5) 
Loans payable, current portion 
Loan mterest payable 
Capital projects payable 

Total restncted current liabilities 

Total current liabihUes 

Noncurrent liabilities-
Bonds payable, less current portion, unamortized loss on 

advance refunding and unamortized discount (note 5) 
Loans payable 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Resiriaed for 

Debt service 
Capital acquisition 
Operating reserve 

Unrestncted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

2011 2010 

14,864,170 $ 
753.255 

1,351,821 
200,652 

17,169,898 

3,480,805 
9,858,308 

10,895,000 
1,684,138 

820,630 
15,859,274 

42,598,155 

59,768,053 

320,168,814 
33,687,852 

353,856,666 

413,624,719 

228,829,564 

45,256,853 
33,461,301 
12,095.113 
49,085,819 

368.728,650 

782,353,369 $ 

12,955,829 
1,007,283 
1,346,851 

211,498 

15.521,461 

5,727,160 
10,346,941 
10,450,000 

7,967,032 

34,491,133 

50,012,594 

328,546,804 
35,371,990 

363,918,794 

413,931,388 

212,834,706 

44,812,148 
41,584,061 
12,096,633 
44,615,697 

355,943,245 

769,874,633 

Sec accompanying notes to financial statements 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets 

Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

2011 2010 

Operaung revenues (note 8) 
Landing and airfield fees 
Termmal building 
Ground transportation and other areas 
Other 

Total operatmg revenues 

Operatmg expenses 
Direct 
Depreciation and impairment wnte-down 
Administrative 
Cancelled/unreunbursed projects 

Total operating expenses 

Operating loss 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Investment mcome (loss) 
Interest expense 
Passenger facility charges 
Customer facility charges 
Gain on forgiveness of debt (note 5) 
Olher, net 

Total nonoperatmg revenues, net 

Income before capital contributions 

Capital contnbutions (note 6) 

Change in net assets 

Total net assets, beginnmg of year, as restated 

Total net assets, end of year 

$ W,5B0S3S S 
45,954,501 

2.151,175 

58,686,514 

16,109,049 
32,446,580 
22,767,418 

1,681,342 

73,004,389 

(14,317.875) 

(136.341) 
(14,287,593) 

17,389,251 
11,456,403 

390,548 

14,812,268 

494,393 

12,291,012 

12,785,405 

355,943,245 

$ 368,728,650 $ 

12,675,147 
48,895,154 

2,130,521 
81,456 

63,782,278 

16,971,565 
29,599,254 
24,304,830 

5.562,367 

76,438,016 

(12,655,738) 

106,849 
(13,415,121) 

16,912,099 
11,975,343 
12,004,938 

(31,451) 

27,552,657 

14,896,919 

10,736,088 

25,633,007 

330,310,238 

355,943,245 

See accompanymg notes to financial statements 

19 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Years ended December 31,2011 and 2010 

2011 2010 

Cash fiows from operating activities 
Cash received from customers 
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash paid to employees and on behalf of employees 

for services 
Other receipts 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash fiow from noncapital financing activmes 
Sales tax receipts 
FEMA proceeds 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 

Cash fiows from capital and related financing activities 
Passenger facility charges collected 
Customer facility charges collected 
Proceeds from disposition of property 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 
Capital grants received 
Principal paid on revenue bond maturities 
Issuance of revenue bonds 
Interest paid on bonds and loans 
Cost of bond issuance and insurance 

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related 
financmg activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Sales of mvestments 
Purchases of investments 
Interest and dividends on investments 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 

Net mcrease (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginnmg of year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (note 2) 

Noncash investing activities. 
Decrease m mvestments due to change m fair value 

Noncash financmg activiUes 
Amortization of bond-related costs 
Gain on forgiveness of debt 

59.531,824 S 
(30.591,437) 

(9,958,955) 
658,356 

19,639,788 

750,726 
568,202 

1,318,928 

16.995,980 
11,510,350 

36,245 
(74,887,490) 
11,284,948 

(10,450,000) 
— 

(20,415,172) 
— 

(65,925,139) 

185,980,802 
(142,406,122) 

137,856 

43,712,536 

(1,253,887) 
3,453.358 
2,199,471 $ 

(235,562) $ 

(2.948,682) $ 

— $ 

66.222,371 
(22,195.367) 

(9,217,475) 
69,603 

34,879,132 

651,407 
306,365 

957,772 

17,047,634 
11,885,561 

13,214 
(56,153,065) 
10,840,118 

(11,845,910) 
54,775,910 
(16,051,780) 
(1,178,243) 

9,333,439 

231,548,127 
(275,292,356) 

106,777 

(43,637.452) 

1,532,891 
1,920,467 
3,453,358 

(32,231) 

(2,932,547) 

12.004.938 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

2011 2010 

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided 
by operating activities: 

Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and impairment 
Decrease in allowance for doubtful accounts 
Cancelled/unreimbursed projects 
Other 
Changes in assets and liabilities 

Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses and deposits 
Accounts payable 
Accrued salaries and other compensation 
Due to City of New Orleans 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operatmg activities 

(14,317,875) $ 

32,446,580 
898,344 

658,356 

(53,034) 
594,489 

(338,014) 
196,194 

(445,252) 

33,957,663 

19,639,788 $ 

(12,655,738) 

29,599,254 
(81,456) 

4,054,352 
69,603 

2,440,093 
(456,019) 

12,103,117 
(464,249) 
270,175 

47,534,870 

34,879,132 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Organization 

The Louis Armstrong New Orleans International Airport (the Airport) is a propnetary component 
unit of the City of New Orleans, Louisiana. The New Orleans Aviation Board (the Board) was 
established in 1943 to provide for the operation and mamtenance ofthe Auport The Board consists 
of nine members appointed by the Mayor of the City of New Orleans with approval of the New 
Orleans City Council. The City of Kenner, Louisiana and the Parish of St Charles, Louisiana each 
have input as to the selection of one board member 

The accompanymg policies ofthe Airport conform to accounting principles generally accepted m the 
United States of Amenca as applicable to propnetary component units of govemmental entities 

(b) Basis of Presentation 

Proprietary fimd accountmg is used for the Airport's ongoing operations and activities which are 
similar to those often found in the pnvate sector Proprietary funds are accounted for using the 
economic resources measurement focus The Airport is a propnetary component unit and accounts 
for operations (a) that are financed and operated m a maimer sunilar to private busmess enterpnses 
where the intent of the goveming body is that the cost (expenses, includmg depreciation) of 
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
pnmanly through user charges and (b) where the goveming body has decided that penodic 
determmation of revenues eamed, expenses mcurred, and/or net mcome is appropnate for capital 
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. 

The principal operatmg revenues of the Auport are frt)m sources such as airlmes, concessions, rental 
cars, and parkmg Investment income, passenger facility charges, customer facility charges, federal 
and state grants, and other revenues not related to the operations of the Airport are nonoperatmg 
revenues Operating expenses include the cost of airport and related facilities maintenance, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets Interest expense and fmancing costs are 
nonoperating expenses 

(c) Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting under 
which revenues are recognized when eamed and expenses are recognized when mcurred Revenues 
from landing and aufield fees, terminal buildmg, rental building, and leased areas are reported as 
operatmg revenues Transactions, which are capital, fmancmg, or mvesting related, are reported as 
nonoperating revenues Expenses from employee wages and benefits, purchase of services, materials 
and supplies, and other miscellaneous expenses are reported as operating expenses Interest expense 
and fmancmg costs are reported as nonoperatmg expenses. Under the provisions of Govermnental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financia! Reporting for 
Proprietary Fund Accountings the City of New Orleans has elected not lo follow Financial 
Accounting Standards Board guidance issued subsequent to November 30,1989 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(d) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accountmg pnnciples generally accepted 
in the United States of Amenca requu^s management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date ofthe financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting penod Actual results could differ from those estimates 

(e) Accounts Receivable 

An allowance for estimated uncollectible accounts receivable is established at the time information 
becomes available, which would indicate the uncollectibility ofthe particular receivable 

(f) Investments 

Investments are carried at fair value m the financial statements. Unrealized gains and losses on 
investments are refiected m the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets. 

(g) Capital Assets 

Capital assets are earned at cost. An item is classified as an asset if the initial, individual cost is 
$1,000 or greater Additions, unprovements, and other capital outlays that significantly extend the 
useful life of an asset are capitalized Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed 
as mcurred. In situations mvolvmg the constmction of certain assets financed with the proceeds of 
tax-exempt borrowings, interest eamed on related interest-bearing investments from such proceeds 
are offset against the related interest costs in determining the amount of interest to be capitalized 
There was capitalized mterest m the amount of $8,764,254 m 2011 and $8,518,203 in 2010 

Effective for the year ended December 31, 2010, the Airport adopted the Govemmental Accountmg 
Standards Board's (GASB) Statement No 51 - Accounting and Financial Reportmg for Intangible 
Assets (GASB 51) GASB 51 provides that if there are no factors that limit the usefiil life of an 
intangible asset, the intangible asset is considered to have an indefinite usefiil life Intangible assets 
with indefinite life is subsequently determined that certam air nghts previously recorded as 
amortizable capital assets, now quahfy as intangible assets as defmed m GASB 51 

Depreciation is provided over the estimated usefiil lives of the assets using the straight-line method 
commencing with the date of acquisition or, in the case of assets constructed, the date placed into 
service 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes lo Financial Statements 

December 31, 2011 and 2010 

The estimated useful lives by major classification are as follows 

Land improvements 
Buildings and fiirnishings 
Equipment 
Utilities 
Heliport 

Estimated 
useful 

lives (years) 
10-25 
3 -25 
3 -15 
5 -25 
5-15 

(h) Due front/Due to t/te City of New Orieans 

Amounts recorded as due from and due to the City of New Orleans prunarily relate to amounts paid 
by the City on behalf of the Airport In addition, the City provides certain administrative services to 
the Airport. The cost of such services was $1,753,520 and $1,670,017 for the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and is recorded m admmistrative expenses in the 
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes m net assets 

(i) Restricted Assets 

Restncted assets mclude mvestments required to be maintained for debt service, capital additions 
and contingencies, operations and mamtenance, and escrow under the indentures of the revenue and 
refunding bonds, as well as mvestments to be used for the constmction of capital improvements 
Restncted assets also include receivables related to passenger and customer facility charges and 
grants 

(f) Bond Insurance 

In conjunction with bonds issued m 2009 and 2007, insurance was purchased which guarantees the 
payment of bond principal and interest and expires with the final pnncipal and interest payment on 
the bonds The msurance costs were capitalized at the dates of issuance and are being amortized over 
the life ofthe bonds usmg the interest method. 

(ic) Revenue Recognition 

Landing and airfield fees, termmal building, rental building, and leased areas rentals are recorded as 
revenues ofthe year in which eamed 

As a result of Humcane Katrina, the Airport entered into negotiations with the airlme transportation 
companies in order to determine the maximum amount of fees and charges the Auport would be able 
to charge to retam the airlme transportation companies and provide airlme services lo the City of 
New Orleans In November 2005, the Board adopted the rates, fees, and charges resolution whereby 
the airport transportation companies are charged S8 00 per enplaned passenger Landing fees were 
established at $1 07 per 1,000 pounds of gross maximum landed weight 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Fmancial Statements 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

On Januaiy 1, 2009 all prospective signatory aulines began paying signatoiy airlme rates and 
charges according to the new lease agreement. The rates for 2011 and 2010 are as follows 

2011 2010 
Termmal building rental rates (per sq ft ) 
Landing fee rate (per 1,000 lbs) 
Apron use fee rate (per sq. ft.) 
Loading bridge use fee (per bndge) 
Enplaned passenger fee rate (per person) 

Due to the terms ofthe agreement, these rates are subject to settlement The Airport shall use its best 
efforts such that withm the later of (i) one hundred twenty (120) days following the close of each 
fiscal year or (u) within sixty (60) days of receipt of audited financial statements, rates for rentals, 
fees, and charges for the precedmg fiscal year shall be recalculated using available financial data and 
the methods Under the settlements for 2010 and 2011, the Airport's final rate stmcture varied from 
the rates in effect dunng the year 

(I) Passenger Facility Charges 

On June 1, 1993, the Airport began unposmg, upon approval ofthe Federal Aviation Administration 
(the FAA), a $3 00 Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) on each passenger enplaned at the Airport On 
Apnl 1, 2002, the FAA approved an increase m the amount of this fee to $4 50 As of December 31, 
2011, the Airport is authorized to collect up to $564,820,750 of PFC revenue of which $278,520,173 
has been collected PFC revenues are pledged to secure the Series 2007 Revenue bonds and the 
Senes 2009 Revenue bonds, which funded constmction of preapproved capital projects and 
redeemed pnor Series of PFC Bonds. As of December 31, 2011, the estimated expu-ation date on 
PFC revenue collection is Febmary 1, 2026 

(m) Customer Facility Charges 

On November 1, 2008, the Airport began unposmg a S5.50 Customer Facility Charge (CFC) on a per 
transaction day basis to all the On-Airport Rental Car Companies On May 13, 2009, the Board 
approved an increase in the CFC charge to $6 20 which became effective June I, 2009 CFC 
revenues are pledged to secure the Senes 2009 Gulf Opportunity Zone CFC Revenue Bonds, which 
were issued to fimd the constmction ofthe CONRAC garage 

(n) Federal Financial Assistance 

The Airport receives financial assistance for costs of construction and improvements to airport 
facilities through grants from the FAA The Airport is on the reimbursement basis for funds received 
for fmancial assistance As of December 31, 2011, the Airport had received $3,159,642 from FEMA 
as reimbursement for repairs and expenses incurred by the Airport as a result of Humcanes Katrma 
and Gustav 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

(o) Vacation and Sick Leave 

All full-time classified employees of the Airport hued prior to January 1, 1979 are pennitted to 
accme a maximum of 90 days of vacation (annual leave) and an unlimited number of days of sick 
leave (accumulated at a maximum of 24 days per year). Employees hured afkr December 31, 1978 
can accme a maximum of 45 days annual leave and an unlimited number of days of sick leave 
(accumulated at a maximum of 24 days per year) Upon termination of employment, an employee is 
paid for theu" accmed annual leave based on theu* current hourly rate of pay and for their accmed 
sick leave on a formula basis If termination is the result of retirement, the employee has the option 
of converting their accmed annual and sick leave to additional pension credits Annual leave and sick 
leave habilities are accmed when mcurred 

(p) Statements of Cash Flows 

For purposes of the statements of cash fiows, cash and cash equivalents include unrestricted cash, 
unrestncted certificates of deposit, and restncted cash 

(q) Reclassifications 

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation 

(2) Cash and Investments 

Included in the Airport's cash balances are amounts deposited with commercial banks m mterest beanng 
and noninterest beanng demand accounts. The commercial bank balances are entirely insured by federal 
depository insurance or by collateral held by the financial institution in the Airport's name. 

The Airport follows GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain 
Investments and for External Investment Pools, which requires the adjustments ofthe carrying values of 
investments to fair value, which is based on available market values The local govermnent investment 
pool is a "2a-7-like" pool m accordance with GASB Statement No 31; therefore, it is not presented at fair 
value but at its actual pooled share price, which approximates fair value. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, 
the fair value of all securities regardless of balance sheet classifications as cash and cash equivalents or 
investments was as follows. 

2011 2010 

Securities. 
Common Stock Airhne bankmptcies 
Local govemment investment pool 
Investment in money market funds 

Total secunties, at fair value 

172,309 $ 
92.393,128 

177,817,593 

591,493 
83,353,040 

230,248,739 

270,383,030 $ 314,193,272 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31.2011 and 2010 

These secunties are held m the followmg accounts: 

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Noncurrent assets 
Investments 

Total cash and mvestments 

Less cash on deposit 

Total secunties, at fair value 

2011 

$ 2,199,471 $ 
131,036,769 

139,346,261 

272,582,501 

(2,199,471) 

$ 270,383,030 $ 

2010 

3,453,358 
114,642,627 

199,550,645 

317,646,630 

(3,453,358) 

314,193,272 

The Airport i$ authorized to invest in secunties as described in its investment policy, in each bond 
resolution and state statue. As of December 31, 2011, and 2010, the Auport held the following mvestments 
as categonzed below in accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Ruik 
Disclosures 

Investment Maturities at December 31,2011 

Investment type 

Common Stock: Au'line bankruptcies 
Local govemment mvestment pool 
Money market funds 

Investment 1 

Investment type 

Common Stock: Airlme bankmptcies 
Local govemment mvestment pool 
Money market funds 

$ 

Vlaturit 

$ 

$_ 

Less than 
I year 

172,309 $ 
92,393,128 

177,817,593 

270.383,030 $ 

les at December 31, 

Less than 
lyear 

591,493 $ 
83,353,040 

230.248,739 

314,193,272 $ 

l t o 5 
Years 

2010 

l t o 5 
Years 

- $ 

- $ 

- $ 

= ^ = 

Total 

172,309 
92,393,128 

177,817,593 

270,383,030 

Total 

591,493 
83,353,040 

230,248,739 

314,193,272 

Interest Rate Risk: As a means of limitmg its exposure to fair value losses ansmg from nsmg interest 
rates, investments are generally held to matunty The Airport's investment policy requires the investment 
portfolio to be stmctured to provide sufficient liquidity to pay obligations as they come due 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Fmancial Statements 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

To the extent possible, investment matunties are matched with known cash needs and anticipated cash 
fiow requirements Additionally, maturity limitations for investments related to the issuance of debt are 
outlined in the Bond Resolution relating to the specific bond issue 

Credit Risk: The Airport's general investment policy applies the pmdent-person mle* 

Investments are made as a pmdent person would be expected to act, with discretion and intelligence, to 
seek reasonable mcome, preserve capital and, in general, avoid speculative mvestments Airport policy 
limits mvestinents to the highest credit rating category of Standard & Poor's (S&P). Funds can only be 
mvested in money market funds rated AAAm, AAm, or AAAm-G by S&P. 

In accordance with the Airport's investment policy and bond resolutions, all U S government agency 
securities held in the portfolio are either issued by or explicitly guaranteed by the U S government. 

Custodial Credit Risk: For an investment, custodial nsk is the nsk that, m the event ofthe failure ofthe 
counterparty, the Airport will not be able to recover the values of its investments or collateral securities 
that are in the possession of an outside party All ofthe Airport's mvestments are either held in the name of 
the Airport or held in tmst under the Airport's name. 

Concentration of Credit Risk: The Airport's mvestments are not subject to a concentration of credit risk 

In 2007, the Airport acquired common stock as a result of bankmptcy proceedings of three airlmes The 
common stock with a market value of $172,309 at December 31, 2011 was subject to market nsk as a 
result ofthe volatility ofthe stock market 

LAMP: LAMP is administered by LAMP, Inc , a non-profit corporation organized under the laws ofthe 
State of Louisiana Only local govemment entities having contracted to participate in LAMP have an 
investment interest in its pool of assets The primary objective of LAMP is to provide a safe environment 
for the placement of public funds m short-term, high quality mvestments. The LAMP portfolio includes 
only secunties and other obligations in which local govemments in Louisiana are authonzed to invest in 
accordance with Louisiana R S 33 2955 Accordingly, LAMP mvestments are restricted to securities 
issued, guaranteed, or backed by the US Treasury, the U S. Govemment, or one of its agencies, 
enterprises, or instrumentalities, as well as repurchase agreements collateralized by those securities. The 
dollar weighted average portfolio maturity of LAMP assets is restncted to not more than 90 days, and 
consists of no seciurities with a matunty in excess of 397 days LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to 
provide immediate access to participants The fair market value of investments is determmed on a weekly 
basis to monitor any variances between amortized cost and market value. For purposes of determining 
participants' shares, investments are valued at amortized cost 

(3) Summary of Restricted Assets 

Assets restncted for specific purposes m accordance with bond indentures and other legal restnctions are 
composed of the following at December 31,2011 and 2010 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

(4) Capital Assets 

Capital assets include assets acquu*ed with the Airport's own funds as well as those acquired through 
resources extemally restncted for capital acquisition A summary of changes in capital assets for the years 
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows 

Capital assets not being depreciated 
Land 
Air nghts 
Constiuction m progress 

Total capital assets 
not bemg 
depreciated 

Capital assets bemg depreciated. 
Land improvements 
Buildmgs and fiimishmgs 
Equipment 
Computers 
Utihties 
Heliport 

Total capital assets 
bemg depreciated 

Total capital assets 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Land improvements 
Buildings and furnishings 
Equipment 
Computers 
Utilities 
Hehport 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 

Total capital assets, net 

Balance 
Decembers], 

2010 

$ 85,432,116 S 
22,170,230 
86,273,138 

193,875,484 

338,033,354 
331,640,337 

6,589,880 
621,340 

7,786,124 
3,069,679 

687,740,714 

881,616,198 

199,860,152 
238,111,598 

5,634.364 
100.883 

4,944,736 
3,067,538 

451,719,271 

$ 429,896,927 $ 

Additions/ 
transfers 
during 
year 

- $ 
112.219 

92,911,590 

93,023,809 

3,886,292 
44,098,518 

114,177 
91,922 

-
4,500 

48,195,409 

141,219,218 

15,204,079 
16,716.298 

254,964 
132,999 
258,634 

354 

32,567,328 

108,651,890 $ 

Deletions/ 
transfers 
during 
year 

(122,683) S 
-

(49,563,394) 

(49,686,077) 

-
(1,821.022) 

(207,630) 
-
-
-

(2.028,652) 

(51.714,729) 

-
(1,059,678) 

(207,630) 
-
-
-

(1,267,308) 

(50,447,811) 3 

Balance 
December 31, 

2011 

; 85,309,433 
22,282,449 

129.621,334 

237,213,216 

341.919,646 
373,917,833 

6,496,427 
713,262 

7.786,124 
3,074,179 

733,907.471 

971,120,687 

215,064,231 
253,768,218 

5,681,698 
233,882 

5,203,370 
3,067,892 

483,019.291 

J 488,101,396 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NT;W ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Fmancial Statements 

December 31, 2011 and 2010 

Capital assets not bemg depreciated 
Land 
Air nghts 
Consmiction in progress 

Total capital assets 
not bemg 
depreciated 

Capital assets bemg depreciated 
Land improvements 
Buildings and furnishmgs 
Equipment 
Computers 
Uuhties 
Heliport 

Total capital assets 
bemg depreciated 

Total capital assets 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Land unprovements 
Buildings and fumishmgs 
Equipment 
Computers 
Utilities 
Heliport 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 

Total capital assets, net 

Balance 
December 31, 

2009 

(as adjusted) 
$ 86.787.123 $ 

20,188,143 
69,806,690 

176,781,956 

325,059,239 
300,058,947 

5.904,500 
-

7.786,124 
3,069,679 

641.878.489 

818,660,445 

184,832,734 
224.893,146 

5,443.526 
-

4,686.102 
3,067,257 

422.922,765 

$ 395,737,680 $ 

Additions/ 
transfers 
during 
year 

905,858 $ 
1,982,087 

67,785.681 

70,673,626 

13.014.365 
32,253,645 

685,380 
621,340 

-
-

46,574,730 

117,248,356 

15,027,418 
13,458,122 

190,838 
100,883 
258,634 

281 

29,036,176 

88.212.180 $ 

Deletions/ 
transfers 
during 
year 

(2.260,865) $ 
-

(51,319.233) 

(53,580,098) 

(40,250) 
(672.255) 

-
-
-
-

(712,505) 

(54,292,603) 

-
(239,670) 

-
-
-
-

(239,670) 

(54,052.933) $ 

Balance 
December 31, 

2010 

85,432,116 
22,170,230 
86,273,138 

193,875,484 

338,033,354 
331,640,337 

6.589,880 
621,340 

7.786,124 
3,069,679 

687,740,714 

881.616,198 

199.860,152 
238,111,598 

5,634,364 
100,883 

4,944,736 
3,067,538 

451,719.271 

429,896.927 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit of tlie City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 201 land 2010 

Constmction m progress is composed ofthe followmg at December 31,2011 

Description 
Consolidated Rent A Car Facility 
Terminal Apron Rehab 

Terminal Intenor Improvements 
Terminal/Baggage Claim Improvements 
Terminal Apron Rehab Phase II 
New Utility Buildmg 
Extenor Terminal - Lower and Upper Roads 
New Airfield Lighting Vauh 

New Terminal - Design Phase 

North Penmeter Road Improvements 
Termmal Improvements Phase IV 

Tenninal FIDS/BIDS/GIDS 
Expansion Taxiway Gulf Phase I 
Perimeter Fence 

Long Term Development Project Mgmt 
USAGE Auport Levee Coordination 
Land Development & Reuse Plan 

Miscellaneous Projects under $1,000,000 

Project 
authorization 

99,796,192 $ 

18.803,966 

12,044.009 
12,003,154 
11,068,382 

10,790,788 
7,236,141 

5,974,869 

5,000,000 
4,399,894 

4,353,000 

2,810,052 
2,538,197 
2,530,000 

2,000,000 
1,884,988 

1,200,000 
2,786,044 

207,219,676 $ 

December 31, 
2011 

62,888,686 $ 
17,055,752 

9.072,977 
7,213,643 
8,797,053 
3,271,582 

5,194,579 
5,382,841 

3,000 
3,990,834 

8,606 

2,454,593 
931,564 

52,981 
217,457 

1,713,625 
3,000 

1,368,561 

129,621,334 $ 

Remaining 
commitments 

36,907,506 
1,748,214 

2,971,032 
4,789,511 
2,271,329 
7,519,206 

2,041,562 
592,028 

4,997,000 
409,060 

4,344,394 

355,459 
1,606,633 

2,477,019 
1,782,543 

171,363 
1,197,000 

1,417,483 

77,598,342 

Dunng the year ended December 31, 2010, an impairment wnte-down of $563,078 is included m 
depreciation and impairment wnte-down on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Assets The impairment wnte-down resulted from a reduction in the carrying amount of certain passenger 
loading bridges The Airport determmed that these loading bndges had no future benefit and were 
subsequently sold as scrap metal in 2011 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orieans) 

Notes to Fmancial Statements 

December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(5) Long-term Debt 

Long-term debt activity for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was as follows: 

Long-Term Debt 
Bonds Payable 
Senes 2007A Revenue Bonds, 

fixed interest rate 
January 1.2038 
at 4 25% iina] matunty 

Senes 2007B-1 Revenue Refimding 
Bonds, fixed interest rate 
Januaiy 1.2020 
al 4 25% final matunty 

Senes 2007B-2 Revenue Refiindtng 
Bonds, fixed interest rate 
January 1, 2019 
at 4 25% final matunty 

Senes 2009A-1 Revenue Refunding 
bonds, fixed interest rale 
Januaiy 1.2023 
at 4 25% final matunty 

Senes 2009A-2 Revenue Refunding 
bonds, fixed inleresi rate 
Januaiy 1, 2023 
at 4 25% final matunty 

Senes 2009B Revenue Refundmg 
bonds, fixed mterest rate 
January 1, 2015 
at 4 50% final maturity 

Series 2009C Revenue Refunding 
bonds, fixed interest rate 
January 1,2012 
al 3 50% final matunty 

Senes 2009A GO ZONE CFC 
Revenue bonds, fixed intcrc«n 
rate, January 1, 2040 
at 4 625% final matunty 

Balance 
Decembers]. 

2010 Additions Deductions 

Balance 
Decembers], 

2011 

Amounts 
due Within 
one year 

63.910.000 $ 

4,295,000 

15,685.000 

73,960 000 

23,055,000 

27,140,000 

12,015,000 

96,515.000 

(1,060.000)5 62,850,000 $ 1,110,000 

4.295,000 

(1,575.000) 14.110.000 

73.960,000 

1.655,000 

(7,815,000) 

23.055,000 

27.140,000 

4^00,000 

96.515,000 

3.930,000 

4,200,000 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

Lone-Term Debt 
Bonds Payable 
Series 2010A GO ZONE PFC 

Revenue Bonds, fixed interest 
rate, January 1.2041 
at 5 25% final matunty 

Senes 201 OB GO ZONE PFC 
Revenue Bonds, fixed interest 
rate,Januar>'I,2038 
at 5 125% final matunty 

Less 
Unamortized loss on advance 

refunding 
Unamortized discount on 

bonds 
Unamortized premium on 

bonds 

Loans Payable 
Go Zone 

Other Liabilities 
GO Zone Intcresl Payable 

Balance 
Decembers], 

2010 

$ 52,355.000 $ 

1.285,000 

370,215,000 

(28,290,599) 

(3.645.950) 

718,353 

338.996,804 

35,371,990 

35,371,990 

-

$ 374,368,794 $ 

Additions 

- $ 

-

-

-

-

-
. 

-

820.630 

820.630 

820.630 $ 

Deductions 

- $ 

-

(10,450,000) 

2,381.121 

162.494 

(26.605) 

(7,932.990) 

-

. 

(7,932,990) $ 

Balance 
Decembers], 

2011 

52.355,000 $ 

1.285,000 

359.765.000 

(25.909.478) 

(3.483.456) 

691,748 

331,063,814 

35 371,990 

35,371,990 

820.630 

820.630 

367,256,434 $ 

Amounts 
due within 
one year 

-

. 

10,895,000 

-

-

. 

10.895.000 

1.684,138 

1,684,138 

820,630 

820,630 

13,399,768 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

Long-Term Debt 
Bonds Payable 
Senes 2007A Revenue Bonds, 

fixed mterest rate 
Januaiy 1.2038 
at 4.25% final matunty 

Senes 2007B-1 Revenue Refundmg 
Bonds, fixed interest rate 
Januaiy 1,2020 
at 4 25% final manmty 

Senes 2007B-2 Revenue Refimdmg 
Bonds, fixed mterest rate 
Januaiy 1,2019 
at 4 25% fmal matunty 

Senes 2009A Intcnm Revenue 
Notes PFC Drawdown Bond and 
Credit Facility, final matunty 
January 1,2040 at LlBOR+1 75% 

Senes 2009A-1 Revenue Refimding 
bonds, fixed mterest rate 
January 1,2023 
at 4 25% final matunty 

Senes 2009A-2 Revenue Refunding 
bonds, fixed mterest rate 
Januaiy 1, 2023 
at 4 25% final matunty 

Scries 2009B Revenue Refunding 
bonds, fixed interest rale 
January 1,2015 
dt 4 50% final matunty 

Series 2009C Revenue Refimdmg 
bonds, fixed mterest rate 
January 1,2012 
at 3 50% final matunty 

Senes 2009A GO ZONE CFC 
Revenue bonds, fixed mterest 
rate, January 1,2040 
at 4 625% fmal maniniy 

Balance 
December 31, 

2009 Additions Deductions 

Balance 
Decembers], 

2010 

Amounts 
due within 
one year 

$ 64.925,000 $ 

4,295,000 

(1,015.000) $ 63,910,000 $ 1,060,000 

4 295,000 

17,195,000 

1,135,910 

(1.510,000) 

(1.135,910) 

15.685,000 1,575,000 

73,960,000 

23.055,000 

27,140,000 

20.200,000 

96,515,000 

(8,185,000) 

73.960000 

23,055,000 

27,140,000 

12.015,000 

96.515,000 

7,815,000 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

Long-Term Debt 
Bonds Payable 
Senes 2010A GO ZONE PFC 

Revenue Bonds, fixed interest 
rate. January 1, 2041 
at 5 25% fmal matunty 

Senes 2010B GO ZONE PFC 
Revenue Bonds, fixed mterest 
rate. January 1,2038 
at 5 125% final matunty 

Balance 
December SI, 

2009 Additions Deductions 

Balance 
December 31, 

2010 

Amounts 
due withm 
one year 

$ 52.355.000 S 

1^85,000 

$ 52,355,000 $ 

1,285.000 

327.285,000 54.775.910 (11,845.910) 370.215.000 10.450.000 

Less 
Unamortized loss on advance 

refunding 
Unamortized discount on 

bonds 
Unamortized premium on 

bonds 

Loans Payable 
FEMA 
Go Zone 

Other Liabilmes 
FEMA Interest Pa>'able 

(30,671.720) 

(3,228.516) 

744,959 

294,129.723 

10,882.641 
35.371,990 

46,254.631 

, 1.122,297 

1.122,297 

$ 341506,651 S 

-

(481.532) 

-

54 294,378 

-
-

. 

. 

. 

54,294,378 $ 

2,381.121 

64,098 

(26,606) 

(9,427,297) 

(10.882.641) 
. 

(10,882.641) 

(1.122,297) 

(1,122,297) 

(21,432,235) $ 

(28,290.599) 

(3.645.950) 

718.353 
338,996.804 

-
35,371,990 

35,371,990 

. 

. 

374,368,794 $ 

-

-

-

10.450,000 

-
. 

-

10,450,000 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Fmancial Statements 

December 31, 2011 and 2010 

Debt service requirements to matunty for all outstanding bonds are as follows 

Interest 
Bonds Payable 

December 31* 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017-2021 
2022-2026 
2027-2031 
2032-2036 
2037-2041 

19,462.503 
18,936,196 
18,363,190 
17,722,633 
17,032,925 
72,935,513 
49,932,422 
37,749,735 
23,639,441 

6,251,792 

Principal Total 

10,895,000 
11,395,000 
11,950,000 
14,210,000 
14,895,000 
85,240,000 
59,645,000 
42,595,000 
56,205,000 
52,735,000 

30,357,503 
30,331,196 
30,313,190 
31,932,633 
31,927,925 

158,175,513 
109,577,422 
80,344,735 
79,844,441 
58,986,792 

$ 282,026350 $ 359,765,000 $ 641,791,350 

Debt service requuements to matunty for all outstanding loans payable are as follows' 

Interest Principal Total 
Loans Payable 

December 31 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017-2021 
2022-2026 

Bonds Payable 

1,641,260 $ 
1,563,116 
1,481,346 
1,395,782 
1,306,248 
5,035.887 
2,085,347 

; 14,508,986 $ 

1,684,138 $ 
1,762,282 
1,844,052 
1,929,616 
2,019,150 

11,591,106 
14,541,646 

35,371,990 $ 

3,325,398 
3,325,398 
3,325,398 
3,325,398 
3,325,398 

16,626,993 
16,626,993 

49,880,976 

On May 26, 2010 New Orleans Aviation Board issued the $52,355,000 New Orleans Aviation Board Gulf 
Opportunity Zone Revenue Bonds (Passenger Facility Charge Projects) Senes 2010A (Non-AMT) (the 
"Senes 2010A Bonds") and the $1,285,000 New Orleans Aviation Board Revenue Bonds (Passenger 
Facility Charge Projects) Senes 2010B (Non-AMT) (the "Series 201 OB Bonds" and collectively with the 
Series 2010A Bonds the "Senes 2010 Bonds") The Series 2010 Bonds were issued to provide permanent 
financing for the allowable costs of a) interior and extenor improvements to certain of the existmg 
terminals of the Airport, b) the expansion of concourse D includmg improvements to the west terminal 
ticket counters and the baggage claim and baggage make-up areas, and c) an m-lme checked baggage 
mspection system for the Airport or to the extent any thereof are not commenced any substitute capital 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2011 and 2010 

improvement project for the Auport presently approved or approved m the fiiture by the FAA for PFC 
secured bond financing (the "2009 PFC Projects") The proceeds ofthe Senes 2010A Bonds will be used 
to pay the allowable costs ofthe 2009 PFC Projects which can be financed with GO Zone Bonds and were 
not previously financed with proceeds of the Senes 2009 Drawdown Bond The proceeds of the Senes 
201 OB Bonds were used to pay the omstanding balance of the disbursements made pursuant to the Senes 
2009 Drawdown Bond. In addition, the Series 2010 Bonds were issued m order to provide the amounts 
required to pay all or any portion of (i) the costs of issuance of all the Senes 2010 Bonds, (li) the costs of 
related credit enhancement devices for the Senes 2010 Bonds, and (lii) provide the Debt Service Reserve 
Fund Requu^ment for the Series 2010 Bonds, or the costs of a reserve asset to serve as all or any portion of 
the Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement for the Series 2010 Bonds 

Loans Payable 

The Board was authonzed to receive up to a maximum of $28,000,000 fi-om the FEMA Community 
Disaster Loan (CDL) Program On June 15, 2006, the Auport received an $8,112,103 CDL from FEMA 
with an interest rate of 2 93% for a period of 60 months On August 25, 2006, the Airport received a 
$2,187,816 CDL fi^om FEMA with an interest rate of 3.06% for a period of 60 months On October 4. 
2006, the Airport received a $582,722 CDL fi-om FEMA with an interest rate of 2.93% for a period of 
60 months (3n August 20, 2010, the Airport submitted to FEMA an application for loan cancellation, 
documentmg the requirements for cancellation of the FEMA CDL Loan On November 5, 2010, the 
Airport received authority from FEMA to cancel all the FEMA CDL Loans in the amount of $10,882,641, 
plus accrued mterest of $1,122,297. The Airport recorded a gain on extinguishment of debt m the amount 
of $I2,0(M,938 on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets for the year ended 
December 31,2010 

In addition, the Board received approval for participation in the Gulf Tax Credit Bonds Program (Go Zone 
Tax Credit Bonds) sponsored by the State of Lomsiana in an amount not exceeding $36,000,000 The 
Auport was approved for $35,371,990 for an interest free penod of 60 months On August 1, 2006, 
Hancock Bank as escrow trustee for the State of Louisiana with respect to its GO Zone Tax Credit Bonds 
Program transferred to the Trustee the amount of $10,242,550 to be used to pay the August 2, 2006 debt 
service on the bonds and related mterest rate swap payments Hancock Bank transferred an additional 
$25,129,440 m debt service between August 2006 and July 2008 which brought the loan to the approval 
amount of $35,371,990 as of December 31, 2011 The Trustee continues to be responsible for making all 
debt service payments on the bonds. The Airport is currently appealmg the repayment schedule for the Go 
Zone loan and did not remit the required interest payment of $820,630 due Januaiy 15,2012 

(6) Capital Contributions and Transfers 

Capital contributions recorded by the Auport represent amounts received from the federal govemment to 
finance the cost of construction of airport facilities 

Dunng the year ended December 31, 2011, the FAA contributed $12,043,255, and the Transportation 
Secunty Administration contnbuted $250,215 Durmg the year ended December 31, 2010 the FAA 
contnbuted $10,308,621, and the Transportation Secunty Admmistration contributed $427,467 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

(7) Pension Plan 

Employees and officers ofthe Airport are eligible for membership in the Employees' Retirement System of 
the City of New Orleans (the Plan), a defined benefit contnbutoiy retu-ement plan. A separate financial 
report on the plan for the year ended December 31, 2010 containmg additional mformation required under 
GASB Statement No 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Govemmental Employers, is 
available fi-om the City of New Orleans Director of Finance, 1300 Perdido Street, Room 1E12, New 
Orieans, Louisiana 70112, (504) 658-1850 

The Airport's annual contnbution to the Employees' Retirement System is based on the amount 
determined by the actuary ofthe Plan, which mcludes amortization of past service costs over a penod of 
30 years The Airport's contnbution to the Plan for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was 
$1,427,148 and $1,154,321, respectively 

(8) Rentals under Operating Leases 

The Airi)ort leases space in its terminal to various airlines, concessionaires, and others These leases are for 
varying penods ranging from one to ten years and requue the payment of minimum annual rentals On 
Januaiy 1, 2009, a new Airline Lease and Use Agreement went into effect with all Signatoiy au-lines 
paying signatory airlmes rates and charges in accordance with the new lease agreement 

The Airport parkmg garage facility (the "Facility") was constructed on land leased by a 501(c) 3 nonprofit 
corporation (the Corporation) from the Airport pursuant to a parking garage ground lease (the "ground 
lease") dated January 1, 2001 The commencement date as defined m the ground lease went mto effect 
January 1, 2002, and the ground rental term began In accordance with the ground lease, the Corporation is 
required to design, finance, construct, and operate the Facility The Facility is bemg financed by the 
Corporation with $44 3 million of tax-exempt bonds The bonds are not an obligation ofthe Auport The 
initial term of the ground lease is ten years with three renewal periods of ten years at the option of the 
Corporation Dunng the term ofthe ground lease, the Corporation will pay the Airport $10,624 a month 
plus percentage rent of 6% of gross revenues generated from the Facility in excess of $7 0 million per year 
plus net cash fiow rent, as defined in the ground lease 

The payment of rent is subject to a minimum annual guarantee payment, as defined in the ground lease 
The fixed rent shall mcrease by 3% per aimum, effective on the first day of each lease year dunng the term 
The 2011 monthly ground rent was $13,862, and 2010 monthly ground rent was $13,458 
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(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

The following is a schedule by year of aggregate future minimum rentals receivable on noncancelable 
operating leases as of December 31, 2011: 

2012 $ 5,340378 
2013 4,807,933 
2014 2,558,227 
2015 2,163320 
2016 2,125,497 
2017-2021 5M6:S92 
2022 156,905 

$ 22,768,652 

These amounts do not include contingent rentals which may be received under most ofthe leases; such 
contingent rentals, including month-to-month concession agreements, amounted to $4,661,120 in 2011 and 
$5,467,959 m 2010. 

(9) Commitments and Contingencies 

(a) Self-Insurance 

The Auport is msured for hospitalization and unemployment losses and claims under the City of 
New Orleans' self-msurance program The Airport pays premiums to the City of New Orleans' 
unemployment self-msurance program, and the Airport and its employees pay premiums to the City 
of New Orleans' hospitalization self-insurance program 

(b) Comtttitmenis 

In the normal course of business, the Airport enters mto various commitments and contmgent 
liabilities, such as construction conti*acts and service agreements, which are not refiected in the 
accompanying financial statements 

(c) Claims and Judgments 

There are several pending lawsuits in which the Airport is involved. Based upon management's 
review and evaluation of such lawsuits and the advice of legal counsel, the Airport believes that the 
potential claims resulting from such litigation and not covered by insurance would not matenally 
affect the financial statements 

(d) Federal Financial Assistance 

The Auport participates m a number of federal financial assistance programs. Although the grant 
programs have been audited through December 31, 2011 in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 
1996, these programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits by govemmental agencies. 

40 (Continued) 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

(10) Restatement 

Management identified an overstatement of revenue which impacted pnor year financial statements due to 
the airlme settlement calculation for landing fees The restatement resulted in a decrease in landing and air 
field fees, accounts receivable, and net assets at December 31,2010 of $1,523,293. 

(11) Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the fmancial statements were available 
to be issued, June 28,2012, and determined that there were no subsequent events requinng disclosure. 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Umt ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Supplemental Schedule of Investments 

Year ended December 31,2011 

Schedule 1 

Descnption 

UnrestrLCted mvestments 
Special receipts 

Dreyfus Treasury Pnmc 
Cash Management 

The Bank of New Yoik Mellon 
J P M U S Treasury Plus 

Investments 
The Bank of New York Mellon 

Year 
acquired 

Matunty 
date 

2008 

2009 

N/A 

N/A 

Par value 

580.144 $ 

1.733.466 

Fair value 

580,144 

1 733,466 

PFC reimbursement: 
Dreyfus Treasury Prune 

Cash Managesnent 
The Bank of New York Mellon 

Stock. Airlme Bankruptcies 

City of New Orleans 
LAMP 

Total unrestncted investments 

2008 

2007 

2011 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

2,313,610 

2.147,840 

172,309 

88,671.181 

93.304.940 

2.313.610 

2,147,840 

172,309 

88.671.181 

93304,940 

Restncted mvestments 
City of New Orleans 

LAMP 2009 N/A 3,721,947 3,721.947 

CTF-Parking Facility Ixan 
JPM U S Treasury Plus 

Investments 
The Bank of New York Mellon 

Debt service fund 
Dreyfus Treasury Pnme 

Cash Management 
The Bank of New York Mellon 

J P M U S Treasury Plus 
Investments 

The Bank of New York Mellon 

Debt service reserve fund, 
Dreyfus Treasury Pnme 

Cash Management 
The Bank of New York Mellon 

J P M U S Treasury Plus 
Investments 

The Bank of New York Mellon 

2010 

2008 

2009 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

2009 

2009 

N/A 

N/A 

1,097 319 

9.246.933 

1,097319 

9,246,933 

12,745,332 12,745,332 

21.992.265 21,992.265 

18,687,373 18.687.373 

14.435.500 14,435.500 

33,122,873 33,122,873 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORIXANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Supplemental Schedule of Investments 

Year ended December 31,2011 

Schedule 1 

Descnption 

Ineligible Sub-Account 
Dreyfus Treasury Pnme 

Cash Management 
The Bank of New York Mellon 

Year 
icquircd 

Maturity 
date 

2009 N/A 

Par value Fair i-alue 

3.545,584 

Operations and mamtenance 
Reserve fund 

JPMUS Treasury Plus 
Investments 

Tlie Bank of New York Mellon 2009 N/A 8.373,167 8.373,167 

Receipts fund 
Dreyfus Treasury Pnmc 

Cash Management 
The Bank of New York Mellon 2009 N/A 715,020 715.020 

CFC Restncted 
Dreyfus Treasury Pnme 

Cash Management 
The Bank of New York Mellon 2010 N/A 1,925,768 1.925,768 

Tune Reimbursement 
Dreyfus Trca-sury Pnmc 

Cash Management 
The Bank of New York Mellon 

Project Account 
Dreyfus Treasury Pnme 

Cash Management 
The Bank of New York Mellon 

PFC Resmcied 
Dreyfus Treasury Pnme 

Cash Management 
The Bank of New York Mellon 

Total restncted mvestments 
Total 

2009 

2009 

2009 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

1.919.795 

79,953,593 

20,710.759 

1,919,795 

79.953.593 

20,710.759 

177,078.090 177,078,090 
$ 270.383.030 $ 270,383,030 
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Schedule 3 
LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Supplemental Schedule of Histoncal Debt Service Coverage Ratio as Required under 
the General Revenue Bond Trust Indenture Dated February 1, 2009 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

(Unaudited) 

Revenues. 
Airline rentals and landing fees $ 31,864,636 
Other operatmg revenues 28,048,435 
Nonoperatmg revenues 90,14 3 
Rollover coverage 3,720,173 

Total revenues 

Less reserve requirements 
Operation and maintenance expenses 

Net revenues 

Debt service fimd requirement 
Principal payments 
Interest expense 

Total debt service fiind requirement 

Histoncal debt service coverage ratio 

63,723,387 

40,557,809 

$ 

$ 

$ 

23,165,578 

8,130,000 
6,750,690 

14,880,690 

156 

See accompanying mdependent auditors' report. 

(1) Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying supplemental schedule has been prepared in accordance with the General Revenue Bond 
Trust Indenture dated February 1, 2009 The supplemental schedule excludes certain revenues and expenses 
as defined in the trust indenture. 

(2) Rollover Coverage 

On November 6, 2009, the Board approved the Rollover Coverage for fiscal years 2010-2011 in the amounts 
of $3,719,573 and $3,720,173, respectively The fiinds are transferred monthly, in ratable portions ofthe 
total, to the NOAB Rollover Coverage Account held by the City of New Orleans, and then transferred to the 
airport operatmg account, held by the City of New Orleans m January 2012 
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Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance with 
Requirements Applicable to the Passenger Facility Charge 
Program, on Internal Control over Compliance, and on the 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges 

New Orleans Aviation Board and the 
City Council ofthe City of New Orleans, Louisiana: 

Comphance 

We have audited the compliance of Louis Armstrong International Auport (the Airport), a component 
umt of the City of New Ch-leans, with the compliance requuements descnbed m the Passenger Facility 
Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies (the Guide), issued by the Federal Aviation Admmistration, for 
its passenger facility charge program for the year ended December 31, 2011 Compliance with the 
requirements of laws and regulations applicable to its passenger facility charge program is the 
responsibility ofthe Airport's management. Oiu" responsibility is to express an opimon on the Airport's 
compliance based on our audit 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditmg standards generally accepted in the 
United States of Amenca, the standards applicable to financial audits contamed m Govemment Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the Umted States, and the Guide Those standards and 
the Guide requu^ that we plan and perform the audit to obtam reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and 
matenal effect on the passenger facility charge program occurred An audit includes examming, on a test 
basis, evidence about the Airport's compliance with those requuements and performmg such other 
procedures, as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determmation of the Airport's 
comphance with those requirements 

In om- opinion, the Airport complied, m all matenal respects, with the requuements referred to above that 
are ^plicable to its passenger facihty charge program for the year December 31, 2011 except for fmdmg 
2011 - 1 that we consider to be a control deficiency m mtemal control over compliance 

Intemal Control over Compliance 

The management of the Airport is responsible for establishmg and maintaining effective mtemal control 
over compliance with the requu-eraents of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants apphcable to the 
passenger facility charge program In plannmg and performing our audit, we considered the Airport's 
intemal control over compliance with requirements that could have a duect and material effect on the 
passenger facility charge program in order to determine our auditmg procedures for the purpose of 
expressmg our opinion on compliance and to test and report on mtemal control over compliance m 
accordance with tfie Guide, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Airport's mtemal control over compliance. Accordmgly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness ofthe Airport's intemal control over compliance 

- 1 -
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A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, m the normal coiu^e of performmg their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with the Guide on a timely basis A material 
weakness in intemal control over comphance is a deficiency, or combmation of deficiencies, m intemal 
control over compliance such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with the 
comphance ofthe Guide will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose descnbes m the first 
paragr2q}h of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies m mtemal control over 
compliance that might be deficiencies, sigmficant deficiencies, or matenal weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in mtemal control over compliance that we consider to be matenal weaknesses, 
as defmed above However, we identified a certam deficiency m mtemal control over comphance, 
descnbed m the accompanymg schedule of findmgs and questioned costs as Findmg 2011 - 1 that we 
consider to be a control deficiency m intemal control over compliance 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges 

We have audited the basic financial statements ofthe Auport as of and for the year ended December 31, 
2011 and have issued our report thereon dated June 28, 2012, which contained unqualified opmions on 
those financial statements. Our audits were performed for the purpose of formmg an opinion on the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanymg schedule of revenues and expenditures of 
passenger facility charges is presented for the purposes of additional analysis as specified in the Guide 
and is not a requued part of the basic financial statements Such mformation is the responsibility of 
management and was denved fiom and relates directly to the underlymg accountmg and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied m the audit ofthe financial statements and certain additional procedures, mcludmg comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlymg accoimting and other records used to prepare the 
fmancial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditmg standards generally accepted in the United States of Amenca. In our opmion, 
the information is fau'ly stated, m all material respects, m relation to the basic fmancial statements taken 
as a whole. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the New Orleans Aviation Board, the 
Airport's management, the City Council ofthe City of New Orleans, Louisiana, the Louisiana Legislative 
Auditor, federal awardmg agencies, pass-through entities, and the Federal Aviation Admmistration, and is 
not mtended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, under 
Louisiana Revised Statute 24 513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public 
document 

Metairie, Louisiana 
June 28, 2012 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

Note to Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passenger Facdity Charges 

Year ended December 31,2011 

(1) Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges 

The accompanymg Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passenger Facility 
Charges (PFC) presents the revenues received fi-om the PFC*s and expenditures mcurred 
on approval projects The Schedule has been prepared on the cash basis of accountmg 
under which revenues are recognized when received and expenses are recognized when 
paid. 

PFC's collected represent cash collected through the end of the month subsequent to the 
quarter-end as reported to the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) in accordance wiA 
14 CFR Part 158. The mterest eamed represents the actual interest collected and accmed 
on the unexpended PFC's during the periods reported. 

The approved collection level for the 10 projects denoted by (1) was increased by the 
FAA fi-om $3 00 per enplaned passenger to $4 50 per enplaned passenger, effective April 
1, 2002 upon the Auport's submission of Application 02-05 m order to amend the 
collection level for projects withm the PFC program The collection level for the projects 
withm Application 02-05 remained at $3 00 per enplaned passenger 

The approved collection level for the 9 projects denoted by (2) was mcreased by the FAA 
to $4 50 enplaned passenger, effective Apnl 1, 2002, upon the Airport's submission of 
Application 02-06 The collection level for the other projects was approved by the FAA 
at $3 00 per enplaned passenger, effective Apnl 1, 2002 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

Finding 2011 - 1 Contract Documentation 

Critena 

Condition 

Effect 

Recommendation 

Management's 
Response 

The Airport does not have signed, formalized documentation for 
contracts and/or amendments with seven contractmg parties on capital 
projects related to passenger facility charge (PFC) fimdmg sources 

In pnor periods, the Auport began capital projects without signed 
documentation for contracts and/or amendments 

Violation of Federal Aviation Admmistration (FAA) and other agency 
compliance requirements 

These contracts and/or amendments should be formalized and signed by 
all parties mvolved m the capital project. 

This findmg stems predominately from activities originating prior to the 
current Airport Administration A new Airport Director was retained m 
May 2010 In January 2011, the Airport commenced hiring a new 
executive team, which was retained between January 2011 and February 
2011 At that time, the Airport had no professional engineers on staff and 
all project management services were outsourced Between February 
2011 and June 2011, the Airport established a new Planning, Design and 
Construction Department (PDC) retaining professional engineers to help 
oversee Airport design and construction activities 

In fall 2011, the Airport's new PDC staff began evaluating all 
outsourced managed projects. During this evaluation, staff discovered 
that seven (7) PFC funded projects did not have executed contract 
documents for certam design and construction services Due to the 
estimated cost to disrupt these projects, all PFC project work has 
continued uninterrupted. All payments have been issued following 
appropriate approval by the New Orleans Aviation Board 

New Airport Administration is committed to comphance with all FAA 
regulations and is actively completmg all unexecuted contract 
docianents The Airport has implemented additional intemal controls to 
ensure all figure AIP funded projects have fully executed contracts in 
place before work begins 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

Schedule of Pnor Year Findmgs and Questioned Costs 

Year ended December 31,2010 

None 
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Report on Intemal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based 
on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

New Orleans Aviation Board and the 
City Council ofthe City of New Orleans, Louisiana 

We have audited the fmancial statements of Louis Armstrong New Orleans International Airport (the 
Airport) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated June 
28, 2012 We conducted our audit m accordance with auditing standards generally accepted m the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained m Govemment Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States 

Intemal Control over Financial Reporting 

Management ofthe Auport is responsible for establishmg and mamtainmg effective intemal control over 
financial reporting. In plaiming and performmg our audit, we considered the Airport's intemal control 
over fmancial reporting as a basis for designmg our auditmg procedures for tiie purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the financial statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the ej^ectiveness 
of the Airport's mtemal control over financial reporting Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness ofthe Airport's mtemal control over financial reporting 

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, m the normal course of performmg theu" assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis A material weakness is a deficiency, or combmation 
of deficiencies, m mtemal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a matenal misstatement 
ofthe financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a tunely basis 

Our consideration of the mtemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose descnbed m 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies m internal control that 
might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or matenal weaknesses We did not identify any 
deficiencies in mtemal control over fmancial reportmg that we consider to be material weaknesses, as 
defined above 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtainmg reasonable assurance about whether the Airport's financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certam provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
matenal effect on the determmation of fmancial statement amounts. However, providmg an 
opmion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordmgly, we 
do not express such an opmion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncomphance or 
other matters that are requu*ed to be reported under Govemment Auditing Standards and which are 
described in the accompanymg schedule of fmdings and questioned costs as item 2011 - 1 

The Airport's response to the finding identified m our audit is described in the accompanymg 
schedule of findmgs and questioned costs. We did not audit the Auport's response and, 
accordmgly, we express no opinion on it 

This report is intended solely for the mformation and use ofthe New Orleans Aviation Board, City 
Council ofthe City of New Orleans, Louisiana, the Airport's management, the Legislative Auditor 
of Louisiana, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not mtended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties However, under Louisiana 
Revised Statute 24 513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document 

Metau'ie, Louisiana 
June 28,2012 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

Schedule of Fmdings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended December 31,2011 

Finding 2011 - /• Contract Documentation 

Criteria 

Condition 

Effect 

Recommendation 

Management's 
Response 

The Airport does not have signed, formalized documentation for contracts 
and/or amendments with eight contractmg parties on capital projects 
related to airport improvements projects (AIP) from federal funding 
sources 

In pnor penods, the Airport began capital projects without signed 
documentation for contracts and/or amendments 

Violation of Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and other agency 
compliance requirements 

These contracts and/or amendments should be formalized and signed by all 
parties involved in the capital project 

This finding stems predominantly from activities originating prior to the 
current Airport Administration. A new Airport Director was retained in 
May 2010 In January 2011, the Airport commenced hiring a new 
executive team, which was retained between January 2011 and February 
2011 At that time, the Airport had no professional engineers on staff and 
all project management services were outsourced Between February 2011 
and Jime 2011, the Airport established a new Planning, Design and 
Construction Department (PDC) retaining professional engineers to help 
oversee Airport design and construction activities 

In fall 2011, the Airport's new PDC staff began evaluating all outsourced 
managed projects Durmg this evaluation, staff discovered that five (5) 
AIP funded projects did not have executed contract documents for certain 
professional services All AIP funded projects were found to have valui 
written contracts for construction and this finding w limited to 
professional services 

In February 2012, new Airport Administration advised ihe FAA of its 
findings and ceased drawing AIP grant fimds for these specific 
professional services that did not have written contract documents Due to 
the estimated cost to disrupt these projects, all AIP project construction 
work continued uninterrupted The Airport is currently using unrestricted 
reserves in lieu of AIP funds until the contract documents are completed 
All payments have been issued following appropriate approval by the New 
Orleans Aviation Board 
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New Airport Administration is committed to compliance with all FAA 
regulations and is actively completing all unexecuted contract documents 
At this time, four contracts have been executed, three contracts are 
awaiting execution by the Mayor and two contracts remain in process The 
Airport has implemented additional intemal controls to ensure all fixture 
AIP funded projects have fully executed contracts in place before work 
begins 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findmgs and Questioned Costs 

Year ended December 31,2010 

None 
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To the City of New Orleans Aviation Board 
Louis Armstrong International Auport 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

In planning and performmg our audit of the fmancial statements of the New Orieans Aviation Board 
(NOAB) as of December 31, 2011, we considered the NOAB's intemal control m order to determme our 
auditmg procedures for the purpose of expressmg an opinion on the consolidated financial statements and 
not to provide assurance on mtemal control. Accordmgly, we do not express an opmion on the 
effectiveness ofthe NOAB's mtemal control 

We previously reported on the NOAB's mtemal control m our reported dated June 28, 2012. This letter 
does not affect our report dated June 28,2012 on the consolidated financial statements ofthe NOAB 

We reviewed the status of pnor year comments dunng our audit engagement Our pnor year comments 
are summarized m Appendix B which also contains the current status of these comments. As noted in 
Appendix A, we do not have any current year comments to be reported. 

We wish to thank the Chief Fmancial Officer and his department for their support and assistance during 
our audit 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board, management, and others withm 
the NOAB. 

^ / 

Metairie, Louisiana 
June 28, 2012 
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Appendix A 

CURRENT YEAR COMMENTS AND MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE 

N/A 
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Appendix B 

PRIOR YEAR COMMENTS AND MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE 

Payroll 

There is no policy regarding review of overtune and vanablc work schedules In addition, some 
departments use a manual system to record time worked Management should consider establishmg a 
preventive control requuing a formal overtime policy and time recordation system, as well as a 
documentation system requinng sign offs and review of overtime 

Current Status 

Resolved To strengthen its mtemal controls, new management initiated the search and selection of an 
automated time recordmg system and issued a supplemental procedural memorandum, which became 
effective in September 2010. Subsequently, management has unplemented an automated tune recording 
system with formal overtime review and sign-off procedures 

Travel and Entertainment and Credit Cards 

There is no formal policy regarding travel and entertainment and credit card transactions. In addition, 
significant travel expenses by several employees were incurred without adequate documentation relatmg 
to the parties or purpose Management should consider establishing a preventative control with a formal 
travel and entertainment and credit card policy requirmg forms to be filled out by the persormel usmg the 
credit card documentmg the fimction, personnel mvolved, and GL coding, with support provided and 
reviewed by another management level individual 

Current Status 

Resolved Dunng 2010, new management reviewed the Board's policies and procedures concurrent with 
City-wide policy review mitiatives and established the attached new policies and procedures for travel, 
busmess expenses and credit card use, which became effective m January 2011 
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